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December 5, 2019 

Kamran Benji 
United Broadway LLC 
6300 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1420 
Los Angeles, CA 90048 

 

Subject:  1138–1140 Broadway Hotel – Response to Crain & Associates Letter 

Dear Mr. Benji: 

LSA has reviewed the Crain & Associates letter (dated October 22, 2019) on the 1138–1140 Broadway 
Hotel project, provided as Attachment A. LSA has prepared the following response regarding alley 
dedication and improvements, as well as transportation impacts.  

The 1138–1140 Broadway Hotel project site abuts an existing alley to the east, which extends from 11th 
Street northerly to 12th Street southerly, and ingress/egress to the site will occur along the alley. The 
comment letter states that the project is required to dedicate and improve the alley.  

The project was considered for compliance with the City of Los Angeles (City) Downtown Design Guide 
(adopted by the City Council in 2009) and Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC), prior to case filing on June 
6, 2018. The applicant consulted with City Planning, Community Redevelopment Agency, Bureau of 
Engineering (BOE), and Department of Transportation (DOT) staff during the design and development of 
the project (including meetings held on March 16, 2017, February 7, 2018, February 21, 2018, and 
April 3, 2018). There was full agreement by City staff that the alley should be used for ingress/egress so 
as to minimize curb cuts along the project’s Broadway (westerly) frontage, a designated Modified Avenue 
II and major north‐south thorough‐fare serving the community. This direction was informed by the 
Downtown Design Guide, and the project was also generally reviewed for consistency with the 
Downtown Design Guide and determined to comply. 

Broadway provides access to the City’s historic core and is the subject of policy efforts to redevelop and 
enhance an important part of the City’s downtown. Accordingly, the Downtown Design Guide is intended 
to enhance the pedestrian experience along this street and minimize the intrusion of curb cuts/vehicular 
access and reduce pedestrian/vehicular conflicts for safety purposes. 

The project has been so designed to provide a pedestrian‐scaled and oriented development along 
Broadway, with a main lobby, ground floor restaurant, and outdoor dining area. Vehicular access is 
therefore provided at the rear of the site along the alley and away from Broadway. Ultimately, per the 
Downtown Design Guide Section D, the project has been reviewed by appropriate staff, including the 
DOT, and the Associate Zoning Administrator has made the final determination of compliance with the 
Downtown Design Guide and made affirmative General Plan findings. The Associate Zoning Administrator 
approval letter for Case No. ZA‐2018‐3288‐CUB (dated May 23, 2019) is provided as Attachment B.  
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Although Mobility Plan 2035 and the BOE Standard Plan for Street Dimensions (S‐470‐1) state that alleys 
shall be 20 feet in width, pursuant to LAMC Section 12.37A, in pertinent part, highway dedication and 
improvement are only required for property in the R3 or less restrictive zones along the property 
frontage that abuts a major or secondary highway. As the alley is not one of these types of designated 
streets, no dedication or improvement is required. 

During construction, the project will only be required to repair and replace any portion of the alley 
affected by construction, as required by the BOE. The applicant will process an “A” Permit at the time of 
construction to complete any alley repairs as required for construction. 

Lastly, LSA prepared the Transportation Impact Study (TIS) for the 1138–1140 Broadway Hotel project 
that was approved by the DOT on May 25, 2018. As part of the TIS process, DOT and Planning staff 
reviewed and approved the study area, the analysis scenarios and methodologies, and the cumulative 
(approved/pending) projects. The TIS determined that the project would not result in any significant 
transportation impacts. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (949) 553‐0666. 

Sincerely, 

LSA Associates, Inc. 

Dean Arizabal 
Associate 

Attachments:  A: Crain & Associates Letter (October 22, 2019) 
B: Associate Zoning Administrator Approval Letter (May 23, 2019) 



RE SPON S E   TO  CRA IN  &  AS SOC I A T E S  LE T T E R  
DECEMBE R  2019  

1138–1140  BROADWAY  HOTE L

LO S  ANGE L E S ,  CA L I F ORN I A

 

P:\UNB1801\Crain & Assoc RTC.docx «12/04/19» 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

CRAIN & ASSOCIATES LETTER (OCTOBER 22, 2019) 
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ATTACHMENT B 
 

ASSOCIATE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL LETTER (MAY 23, 2019) 




































































































































